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paTe:  Jur. 17 2007

Los Angeles City Council
Room 395, City Hall

200 North Spring Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

ATTENTION: Barbara Greaves, Legislative Assistant
Planning and Land Use Management Committee

CASE NUMBER: CHC-2007-1585-HCM
THE BARRY BUILDING
11973 WEST SAN VICENTE BOULEVARD

At the Cultural Heritage Commission meeting of July 12, 2007, the Commission moved to include the above
property in the list of Historic-Cultural Monuments, subject to adoption by the City Council.

As required under the provisions of Section 22.126 of the Los Angeles Administrative Code, the Commission
has solicited opinions and information from the office of the Council District in which the site is located and
from any Department or Bureau of the city whose operations may be affected by the designation of such site
as a Historic-Cultural Monument. Such designation in and of itself has no fiscal impact. Future applications for
permits may cause minimal administrative costs.

The City Council, according to the guidelines set forth in Section 22.125.1 of the Los Angeles Administrative
Code, shall act on the proposed inclusion to the list within 90 days of the Council or Commission action,
whichever first occurs. By resolution, the Council may extend the period for good cause for an additional 15
days.

The Cultural Heritage Commission would appreciate your inclusion of the subject modification to the list of
Historic-Cultural Monuments upon adoption by the City Council.

The above Cultural Heritage Commission action was taken by the following vote:

Moved: Commissioner Martin
Seconded: Commissioner Barron
Ayes: Commissioners Dake, Lehrer and Martin
\/nto- [~} Pt P
} )
Ao s
Sheldred Alexander, Commission Executive Assistant
Cultural Heritage Commission
SA

Attachment: Staff Report with Findings
c: Charles T. Munger and Nancy B. Munger, Owners

Diane M. Caughey, Friends of the Barry Building, Applicant
GIS v

W \\ AN EQUAL. EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY - AFFIRMATIVE ACTION EMPLOYER Recyciable and made from recycled waste. @



-~ Los Angeles Department of City Plannin 4 V 1N~
? RECOMMpENDATION REPOR’yT | iIEM @

CULTURAL HERITAGE COMMISSION 'CASE NO.: CHC-2007-1585-HCM
HEARING DATE: July 12, 2007 Location: 11973 W. San Vicente Boulevard
TIME: 10:00 AM Council District: 11
PLACE: City Hall, Room 1060 Community Plan Area: Brentwood - Pacific
200 N. Spring Street Palisades
Los Angeles, CA Area Planning Commission: West Los Angeles
90012 Neighborhood Council: None
Legal Description: Westgate Acres, M B 7-90/91,
Lot 51
PROJECT: Historic-Cultural Monument Application for the
BARRY BUILDING
REQUEST: Declare the property a Historic-Cultural Monument
APPLICANT: Diane M. Caughey

Friends of The Barry Building
19757 Inspiration Trail
Topanga, CA 90290

OWNER: Witliam H. Borthwick and David B. Borthwick
245 N. Saitair Avenue
Los Angeles, CA 90049

Charles T. Munger and Nancy B. Munger
PO Box 55007
Los Angeles, CA 90055

RECOMMENDATION That the Cultural Heritage Commission:

1. Declare the property a Historic-Cultural Monument per Los Angeles
Administrative Code Section 22.125.

2. Adopt the report findings.

S. GAIL GOLDBERG, AICP

DiIZu:of Plan il:lg -~

Kén Bemnstein, Manager Lambert M. Giessinger, Historic Preservation Architect
Office of Historic Resources Office of Historic Resources
Prepaged by:

sy

Edgar Garcia, Presefvation Planner
Office of Historic Resources

Attachments: March 24, 2007 Historic-Cultural Monument Application
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FINDINGS

1. The building “embodies the distinguishing characteristics of an architectural type
specimen, inherently valuable for a study of a period style or method of construction” as an
example of International Style commercial architecture.

2. The property reflects “the broad cultural, economic, or social history of the nation, State or
community” for its association with the development of the San Vicente commercial
corridor in Brentwood.

CRITERIA

The criterion is the Cultural Heritage Ordinance which defines a historical or cultural monument as
any site (including significant trees or other plant life located thereon) building or structure of
particular historic or cultural significance to the City of Los Angeles, such as historic structures or
sites in which the broad cultural, economic, or social history of the nation, State or community is
reflected or exemplified, or which are identified with historic personages or with important events
in the main currents of national, State or local history or which embody the distinguishing
characteristics of an architectural type specimen, inherently valuable for a study of a period style
or method of construction, or a notable work of a master builder, designer or architect whose
individual genius influenced his age.

SUMMARY

Built in 1951, this two-story commercial building exhibits character-defining features of mid-
twentieth century International Style architecture. The flat-roofed rectangular building is organized
around a central courtyard and opens to the street under a front fagade raised one floor above the
sidewalk on small steel pipe columns, in the style of pilotis. The exterior is clad in stucco with
wood trim. Windows are floor to ceiling grid and louver windows on the interior courtyard with
smaller steel frame windows on the facade. The raised front fagade consists of an unadorned
stucco plane with a simple horizontal band of windows treated with operable vertical sunshades.
Beneath the southeast corner a small freestanding structure serving as a storefront sits slightly
askew to the orthogonal grid of the building. A garden courtyard extends beneath the building,
creating an entrance off the street while maintaining the enclosure of the courtyard. Surrounding
the open courtyard on two levels are small office suites, accessed by two curving stairs, located
on diagonal corners. The staircases have concrete-filled steel pan treads that cantilever from a
central concrete pedestal punctuated with triangular decorative openings. Steel pipes support
both the stair and second floor walkway railings, with exposed detailing such as exposed metal
plates and bolts serving as decorative elements. A surface parking lot at the rear of the property
lot connects to the subject building’s courtyard via a small breezeway. Significant landscape
features include the mature tropicai plants in the courtyard.

The subject building is a well-preserved example of a mid-twentieth century California variant of
International Style modern architecture. The subject building was designed by architect Milton
Caughey (1911-1958), winner of four Merit Awards by the Southern California Chapter of the AlA.
Two of Caughey’s residential designs, the Garred House (1949) and Goss House (1950), were
cited in the first edition of David Gebhard and Robert Winter's seminal Guide to Architecture in
Southern California (1965).

First housing Brentwood Books in 1960 and subsequently Dutton’s Brentwood Books, the
building’s ground-floor storefront and courtyard have served as a bookstore and café for nearly 50
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years and have become a gathering place and landmark for the Brentwood community. Authors
and prominent figures such as Kurt Vonnegut, Carlos Fuentes, Isabel Allende, Alice Walker and
Al Gore have held book signings and readings at Dutton’s Brentwood Books.

Later alterations to the subject property include a 1993 addition of a small receiving and storage
structure at the rear. The screens originally separating the rear patios from the parking lot have
been removed, as have a few of the original windows which have been replaced with aluminum
windows. In addition, some windows have been painted over. The men’s bathroom has been
remodeled and a low ramp has been added in the courtyard. A large section of the original
planting at the center of the courtyard has been paved. Overall, these alterations have not
compromised the architectural integrity of the subject building.

The subject property is located in front of a median of coral trees on San Vicente Boulevard, a
landscape feature designated as Historic-Cultural Monument #148.

DISCUSSION

The Barry Building property successfully meets two of the specified Historic-Cultural Monument
criteria: 1) “embodies the distinguishing characteristics of an architectural type specimen,
inherently valuable for a study of a period style or method of construction” and 2) reflects “the
broad cultural, economic, or social history of the nation, State or community.” As a commercial
building designed in the International Style that helped shape the development of the San Vicente
commercial corridor in Brentwood, the property qualifies for designation as a Historic-Cultural
Monument based on these criteria.

The architectural design and layout of the subject building is a distinguished example of mid-20™
century modern architecture in Southern California and the influence of Corbusier and the
International Style. Its highly original use of a courtyard space with modern design elements
presents a unique example of International Style architecture in Los Angeles. Although appearing
seemingly sparse and modest in design at first glance, closer inspection of the subject building
reveals subtle design features and detailing such as curving cantilevered stairs, pilotis-style posts,
grid and louver windows, metal railings, slightly angled storefronts, and solid smooth
unornamented surfaces. The successful combination of design, scale, landscaping and
pedestrian accessibility, often rare with mid-20™ century commercial buildings, also contributes to
the originality of the Barry Building’s architecture.

Although the subject building’s architect, Milton Caughey, appears to be a noteworthy architect as
proven by his extant designs, his early passing at the age of 46 makes it difficult to determine a
potential recognition as a “master architect’ under the ordinance’s critera. The subject building
appears to be Caughey’s only extant commercial building.

The subject building’s use as a book store since 1960, particularly since the opening of Dutton’s
Brentwood Books in 1984, has contributed to the commercial development and social and cuitural
history of the San Vicente commercial area in Brentwood. As a well-recognized gathering spot
and local landmark, the building’s relationship between its commercial use as a bookstore and its
unique architectural design have contributed greatly to the growth and development of San
Vicente Blvd as a vibrant commercial corridor.
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BACKGROUND
At its meeting of May 3, 2007, the Cultural Heritage Commission voted to take the application

under consideration. On May 17, 2007, the Cultural Heritage Commission toured the subject
property.



Los Angeles Department of City Planning
RECOMMENDATION REPORT

CULTURAL HERITAGE COMMISSION CASE NO.: CHC-2007-1585-HCM
HEARING DATE: May 3, 2007 Location: 11973 W. San Vicente Boulevard
TIME: 10:00 AM Council District: 11
PLACE: Hollywood Women'’s Community Plan Area: Brentwood - Pacific
Club Palisades
1749 N. La Brea Area Planning Commission: West Los Angeles

Los Angeles, CA 90046 Neighborhood Council: None
Legal Description: Westgate Acres, M B 7-90/91,

Lot 51
PROJECT: Historic-Cultural Monument Application for the
The Barry Building
REQUEST: Declare the property a Historic-Cultural Monument

APPLICANT: Diane M. Caughey
Friends of The Barry Building
19757 Inspiration Trail
Topanga, CA 90290

OWNER: William H. Borthwick and David B. Borthwick
245 N. Saltair Avenue
Los Angeles, CA 90049

RECOMMENDATION That the Cultural Heritage Commission:

1. Take the property under consideration as a Historic-Cultural Monument per Los
Angeles Administrative Code Section 22.125 because the application and accompanying
photo documentation suggest the submittal may warrant further investigation.

2. Adopt the report findings.

S. GAIL GOLDBERG, AICP
Director of Planning

Ken Bernstein, Manager Lambert M. Gidssinger, Architect
(_)ffice of Historic Resources Office of Historic Resources
Prepared by:

Dganit $htorch
Office ofi\Historic Resources

Attachments: March 24, 2007 Historic-Cultural Monument Application
ZIMAS Report
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SUMMARY

Built in 1951 and located at 11973 San Vicente Boulevard in Brentwood this two-story, flat-roofed
commercial structure exhibits character-defining features of a mid-twentieth century California
modern style structure. The building is organized around a central courtyard and opens to the
street under a front fagade raised one floor above the sidewalk on small steel pipe columns, pilotis
style. The garden courtyard extends beneath the building creating an entrance off the street while
maintaining a sense of enclosure within the courtyard. There is a surface parking lot at the rear of
the property lot at the rear of the property connected to the courtyard by a small breezeway.
Surrounding the open courtyard on two levels are small office suites. Dutton’s Brentwood
Bookstore has occupied the majority of the ground floor spaces for the past 22 years. Beneath
the southeast corner of the raised front fagade, a small freestanding structure sits slightly askew
to the orthogonal grid of the building.

The building composition consists of a courtyard which becomes the organizational center of the
building, serving as both public circulation and an outdoor room. Two curving stairs, located on
diagonal corners, modulate the courtyard space. Their concrete filled steel pan treads cantilever
from a central concrete pedestal punctuated with triangular decorative openings. Steel pipes
support both the stair and second floor walkway railings. Exposed detailing such as that of the
exposed metal plates and bolts which support the railings are part of the overall building aesthetic.

The subject building may be significant as a well-preserved example of mid-twentieth century
California modern architecture. In addition, the architect, Milton Caughey, was one whose work
continued and advanced the tradition of the new architecture in Los Angeles, originally founded in
the ideas of the 1920's and 1930’s and established as a California movement by Schindler and
Neutra.

Later alterations to the subject property include a 1993 addition of a small receiving and storage
structure at the rear. The screens originally separating the rear patios from the parking lot have
been removed as have a few of the original windows which have been replaced with aluminum
ones. In addition, some windows have been painted over. The men’s bathroom has been
remodeled and a low ramp has been added in the courtyard. A large section of the original
planting at the center of the courtyard has been paved.

First housing Brentwood Books in 1960 and subsequently Dutton’s Brentwood Books, the building
and the courtyard have provided a communal gathering place, where such authors and prominent
figures as Kurt Vonnegut, Alice Walker and Al Gore have held their book signings. [n addition,
daily readings are held in the courtyard space which has been utilized as an intimate
neighborhood resource for many years. The suites of the original barbershop and dentist office
are still used as such today.

CRITERIA

The criterion is the Cultural Heritage Ordinance which defines a historical or cultural monument as
any site (including significant trees or other plant life located thereon) building or structure of
particular historic or cultural significance to the City of Los Angeles, such as historic structures or
sites in which the broad cultural, economic, or social history of the nation, State or community is
reflected or exemplified, or which are identified with historic personages or with important events
in the main currents of national, State or local history or which embody the distinguishing
characteristics of an architectural type specimen, inherently valuable for a study of a period style
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or method of construction, or a notable work of a master builder, designer or architect whose
individual genius influenced his age.

FINDINGS

Based on the facts set forth in the summary and application, the Commission determines that the
application is complete and that the property is significant enough to warrant further investigation
as a potential Historic-Cultural Monument.
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Physical Description
- The Barry Building

The 13,300 square foot Barry Building located at 11973 San Vicente Boulevard in
Brentwood is a two-story, flat-roofed commercial structure constructed in 1951.
Designed in a mid-twentieth century California modern style, the building is
organized around a central courtyard. The building opens to the street under a front
facade raised one floor above the sidewalk on small steel pipe columns, pilotis style.
The garden courtyard spreads out beneath the building creating a welcoming
entrance off the street while maintaining an intimate sense of enclosure within the
courtyard. The building is located on the property immediately adjacent to the street.
There is a surface parking lot at the rear of the property connected to the courtyard
by a small breezeway. Surrounding the open courtyard on two levels are small
office suites. For the past 22 years Dutton’s Brentwood Bookstore has occupied the
majority of the ground floor spaces. Beneath the southeast corner of the raised front
facade a small freestanding structure, currently used as a caf§, sits slightly eschew to
the orthogonal grid of the building. Its twisted grid acknowledges the entrance to
the on-site parking while directing pedestrians into the courtyard beyond.

The building is a composition of masses and voids, transparencies and solids. The
four interior sides of the building create the void of the inner courtyard. The front
and back building pieces read as separate but integrated horizontal masses
overlapping the slightly lower side elements. The inner void of the courtyard
becomes the heart and organizational center of the building, serving as both public
circulation and an outdoor room. Two elegantly curving stairs, located on diagonal
corners, modulate the courtyard space. Their concrete filled steel pan treads
cantilever from a central concrete pedestal punctuated with triangular decorative
openings. The stair and second floor walkway railings are supported by small steel
pipes that tilt slightly inward. The railing is connected to the building with exposed
metal plates and bolts. Such exposed structural detailing celebrates the workman'’s
craft and becomes part of the overall building aesthetic

The building is primarily stucco over wood frame construction with floor to ceiling
large grid wood windows on the majority of the interior facades as well as on the
rear facade of the building. Smaller steel frame windows occur along the outside
facades. The raised front facade consists of an unadorned stucco plane with a simple
horizontal band of windows treated with operable vertical sunshades that provide
environmental control for the south facing offices. Inside the courtyard solar control
is addressed through full-height, horizontal wood louvers set away from the facade
of the west facing offices. On the east interior fagade an open decorative wood grid
provides a compositional counterpoint to the louver screen opposite. Additional
passive environmental features that occur throughout the building include
overhangs for sun control and operable clerestory windows for natural ventilation.

The building is a series of visual layers and transparencies as one moves from the
street through the pilotis entry and into the courtyard. The open street side acts as a
picture frame inviting the eye under the building into the courtyard beyond. At the
upper back of the courtyard a colorful Mondrian-like composition of geometric
window grids pulls the eye deeper into the space. The rich tropical planting
welcomes one to move into the heart of the courtyard where the transparency of the
floor to ceiling glass allows one to see through the building to where, in the past,
small garden patios existed behind each office. At the second floor, views through



the abundant glazing and over the roof tops reveal adjacent high rise buildings and
local trees.

The building sits within a context of several other late-forties or early-fifties modern
style buildings. To the east, Milton Caughey designed a group of small two-story
shops across the driveway from the Barry Building. Built in about 1953, they are of a
similar modern style and detailing. There is a tiny courtyard off the driveway
allowing for entrances to a few rear shops and room for one large tree. Prior to the
construction of the Barry Building and to its west, David Barry built a one-story
modern-style building which housed the original office of David Barry Jr., but is
now occupied by the Mano Gallery. When the courtyard building was built he
moved to its second floor and still maintains his office there today. Sandwiched
between the Barry Building and the gallery is an open floral shop with a plant
nursery behind. The Bonner School, also a low profile modern era building, sits west
of the gallery.

The Barry Building is generally in good condition with only a few changes made to
the original building. In 1993 a small addition for receiving and storage was built at
the rear of the building and the screens originally separating the rear patios from the
parking lot have been removed. The men’s bathroom has been remodeled, a few
windows have been replaced with aluminum ones and some windows have been
painted over. A low ramp has been added in the courtyard. Some of the original
tropical landscaping remains in the courtyard today, however a large section of
original planting at the center of the courtyard has been paved over with flagstone in
order to accommodate a variety of outdoor activities.



Significance Statement
The Barry Building

The Barry Building in Brentwood is significant as an excellent example of mid-
twentieth century California modern architecture and as a recognition of the
architect’s contribution, during his eleven short years of practice, to the architectural
movement of the 1950’s. The architect, Milton Caughey, was one whose work
continued and advanced the tradition of the new architecture in Los Angeles,
originally founded in the ideas of the late ‘20’s and ‘30’s and established as a
California movement by Schindler and Neutra. The Barry Building embodies the
aesthetic and stylistic features typical of the experimentation with new ideas that
gave such vitality to the architecture of the period. The building reflects the
architect’s contribution to exploring variations on the ideas of space and design
inherent in the California modern movement. According to Gebhard and Winter in
Guide to Architecture in Southern California, the momentum of ideas and vitality that
earlier enlightened the architecture of Los Angeles had run down by 1965. The Barry
Building, built in 1951, is one of the rare commercial buildings left in West Los
Angeles that exemplifies the period of great inspiration and ingenuity in California
modern architecture.

The small commercial courtyard building was commissioned by developer David
Barry and designed by local architect Milton H. Caughey, AIA. Builtin 1951, the
building exemplifies the concerns of the modern movement as it manifest in
Southern California where the mild climate and ideals of a California lifestyle
influenced the typology of the modern architecture practiced there. Milton
Caughey’s work explores interests similar to those of his contemporary masters,
such as the unity of interior and exterior space, the abstraction and simplification of
form, harmony with nature, healthy living and environmental considerations. The
Barry Building embodies these modernist concerns as well as the individual
creativity of the architect.

The Architect

Milton H. Caughey was born in 1911 in Pennsylvania. He received his BA from
Ambherst College in 1934 and his MFA from the Yale School of Architecture in 1938.
In the summer of 1936 he worked for the influential Neo-classicist firm of McKim,
Mead and White in New York. After graduation, he worked from 1938-39 for
George Howe and later William Lescaze on buildings for the New York World's
Fair. Howe and Lescaze designed the first International Style high-rise building in
the United States, the Philadelphia Savings Fund Building, (PSFS) in 1932. They
were early modern influences on the architect’s work. In 1940 Caughey moved from

the East Coast to Los Angeles in order to practice modern architecture in an open-
minded and climate conductive al—mnsphnra He worked for M rch’ mith and
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Powell there until 1942 when he joined the U.S. Naval Reserve as a lieutenant. In
1947 he opened his own architectural practice in Los Angeles. From 1953—1957 he
practiced in a partnership as the firm of Caughey and Ternstrom. Thereafter he
practiced as a sole proprietor under Milton Caughey and Associates. In 1958, at age
46, Milton Caughey died suddenly of a heart attack, cutting short the promising
career of a highly talented architect in mid-life.



Mr. Caughey received four Merit Awards for Excellence in Design and Execution
from the Southern California Chapter of the American Institute of Architects. The
first two awards in 1954 were for the Pachappa School and for the Hillburg residence
at Capistrano Beach. He received two more awards in 1957 for the Riverside
Juvenile Hall and the Monroe School.

Mr. Caughey’s work was documented by the well-known architectural
photographers Julius Shulman, Marvin Rand and Robert Cleveland. He served as a
visiting critic and lecturer at the USC School of Architecture in 1953-54 and 1955-57.
He was also a respected and honored watercolor artist and served as president of the
Westwood Art Association in 1957.

The legacy of buildings Mr. Caughey left behind is significant given the short time in
which he practiced. The Barry Building designed in 1950 was one of the architect’s
early commissions and one of his few commercial projects. Around the same time he
designed the Barrington Playground (1950) and his own residence on Chenault St.
(1951), both in Brentwood. Two of his better known California modern houses, the
Garred house (1949) and the Goss house (1950) were included in David Gebhard
and Robert Winter’s classic Guide to Architecture in Southern California, published by
the Los Angeles County Museum of Art (1965) which featured houses of the modern
era by such contemporary masters as Gill, Eames, Saarinen, Neutra, Schindler, and
Soriano among others. Schindler, Soriano, and Eames, an acquaintance of Caughey,
were most likely the greatest contemporary influences on his work. Like Schindler,
he used a romantic personalism in his design and use of space, and an individualism
and ingenuity in his treatment of modern motifs.

All of his houses featured flat roofs, exposed wood post and beam construction,
walls of glass, large sections of which slide open to patios where outdoor living
provided harmony with nature and a healthy California life style. Transparency and
visual movement through the spaces were attributes of the modern style he
employed with finesse and skill in all his projects. His designs were distinguished by
simplicity, clarity of structural systems, and unostentatious architectural charm.

Although he continued to design some houses, by 1953 his attention turned to larger
scale work, primarily schools, detention homes and playgrounds, mostly in the
Riverside area. The same modern features noted above that were hallmarks of his
residential work were translated into these larger projects. Economy of costs
through the careful use of materials, the plan organization, passive energy elements
and easy maintenance became primary concerns of Caughey in the design of schools.
He experimented with new structural materials like exposed metal trusses and
diagonal bracing, indoor/ outdoor classroom spaces, sun-shading, and covered
outdoor hallways, and open classroom plans. Near the end of his life, Caughey like
many modern architects of the time, designed using steel construction, modular
systems and prefabrication. As noted in an LA Times article (1959), “When finished
it [Rubidoux High School] will exemplify the latest techniques in the use of steel as a
primary construction material.” (article in appendix)

Significant schools that expressed his continued exploration of the ideas of the
California modern typology were Mountain View Elementary School (Riverside
1954), Victoria Elementary School (Riverside, CA 1955), Hemet High School Gym,
(Hemet, CA Mid-1950’s), Ramona High School (Riverside, CA, associate architect
1956-7), Highland Elementary School (Riverside, CA 1957), and Rubidoux High
School (Riverside, CA 1957-8). (photos in Appendix) :



In an article in Architectural Forum, Oct, 1954 entitled “Young Architects: Ten
outstanding buildings by some of the nations most promising young designers,”
Caughey’s Pachappa School was featured noting: “... exterior metal louvers [occur]
on both north and south glazing in classrooms to stave off sky glare as well as sun;
both side walls of classrooms 100% glazed, horizontally stiffened with exposed X-
rod bracing;...” “Bright colored and cheery, this 12-classroom school accepts the
bright sun and California kids with unostentatious, but real, architectural charm.”
(articles in appendix)

The Building

The Barry Building designed in 1950 was one of the architect’s few commercial
projects. The building expresses the architect’s clear interest in exploring modernist
ideas. One of the unmistakable influences on the design was Le Corbusier, whose
ideas Caughey first encountered while at Yale. The front facade of the Barry building
is raised up on steel columns, pilotis style, with the garden spreading out beneath it,
reminiscent of one of Le Corbusier’s most famous houses, the Villa Savoye. Also
influenced by the vernacular of Le Corbusier is the simple planer facade of the Barry
building, devoid of decoration except for the horizontal bands of windows. One can
see similar Corbusian influences in the CBS Radio Building in Hollywood, designed
in 1937-38 by William Lescaze for whom Caughey had previously worked.

Milton Caughey, like Schindler before him, was familiar with and integrated into his
designs, the kind of modern experiments in abstraction found in Europe. Interest in
geometric abstractions in architecture stem from Neo-plasticism, a Dutch movement
based entirely on the abstract geometric compositions of Mondrian. Neo-plasticism
grew between 1917 and 1931 in Holland around the review called De Stijl and its
universal idiom of elemental geometric forms, pure colors and extreme simplicity
became an important influence on the formational ideas of the Bauhaus, headed by
Walter Gropius. In the Bauhaus aesthetics were combined with practical function.

As an artist as well as architect, it is apparent that Mr. Caughey used these abstract
compositional ideas in the Barry building as well as in his later schools. The most
obvious use of pure geometric compositions occurs in the building facades where the
grid of storefront windows, solid doors, sunshading devices, and the large grid
screen become the elements of the composition. These grids interplay to create ever-
changing abstract compositions as one moves around the building. The upper back
wall of the courtyard works like a Mondrian painting, with the horizontal and
vertical window grids forming a geometric composition of solids and voids, neutrals
and colors. This type of geometric window composition was highly developed in
the work of Charles Eames.

About the same time that ideas of simplification and abstraction were being
developed in Europe, there was a parallel interest in simplicity in California. This
understated simplicity was hinted at in the solid massing and plain surfaces of the
California Mission style. The quiet monumentality of the Mission style so beautifully
developed by Irving Gill, had its influence on Southern California modern
architecture. The Barry building exemplifies these two influences that helped create
a California modern style: the European movement of abstraction and the Mission
style of simple surfaces, clear massing, and restrained decoration. In the building
these modernist concerns are expressed by the way the four simple masses of the
building that form the open courtyard are carefully articulated to read as separate



pieces. These separated masses create an interlocking composition of forms in space.
The small twisted café element under the pilotis is intentionally held away from the
ceiling plane to separate it from the floating mass above. In the Barry building the
architect pushes beyond the modern ideas of his day by introducing the twisted grid
into the pure geometry of the rectilinear courtyard. The skewed grid introduces a
dynamic element into the building producing a moving composition of abstract
geometric parts.

Another idea that was influenced by the modernists and individually developed by
the architect was the expression of movement through the building. This sense of
movement was achieved by framing the entry and developing layers that pull one
through the space. The architect sensitively designed this experience of movement
by employing such architectural devices as: the low steps set at a slight angle to the
courtyard, the opening and closing down of space through planting, the
transparencies that occur where glazing exists on both sides of a room or at glass
corners. Additionally, he leads one’s eye up and through the space by his use of
composition in forms and flat surfaces, forced perspectives created by the curving
stairs and the tilted railings.

The courtyard, although a basic organizational device, embodies another California
Modernist ideal, that of healthy outdoor living. The unity of exterior and interior
spaces, mastered by Neutra and emphasized in the modern houses of the time, is
less commonly used here in a commercial setting. The ideals of fresh air, operable
windows, outdoor patio space, sunlight with sun controls and a harmony with
nature were brought into the workplace in the Barry building. Today, with the green
movement in architecture, these features are again highly valued. The courtyard was
originally a showcase for many tropical plants brought there from all over the world
by the owner David Barry. His special interest in exotic plants resulted in a tropical
nursery next door to the Barry building, and in Mr. Barry’s influence on the planting
of the Coral trees along San Vicente, themselves now an Historic Cultural
Monument.

The Barry building is not only an excellent example of mid-twentieth century
modern architecture but also an expression of an individual architect’s creativity
within the modern vernacular. Already mentioned is the introduction of the twisted
grid which foreshadowed later contemporary design. The long shallow steps
leading one into the courtyard are also set at an angle to the building grid. Like the
twisting of the café building these steps provide a dynamic movement within the
otherwise simple static orthogonal geometry of the courtyard. The architect
designed elements of surprise, playfulness and movement into the calm clarity of the
overall scheme. The architect’s romantic personalism is expressed in the two
elegantly curving stairways that grace the courtyard and gently guide one to the
second floor. The playful triangular openings in the concrete stair bases add an
abstract composition of their own while subtly echoing the diagonal grid established
by the angle of the café. The unique inward tilting stair and walkway railings are
another surprising and dynamic invention of the architect. In juxtaposition to their
playfulness they express the aesthetic functionality of the modern movement in their
straightforward bolted connection to the building.

Today the building has become a authentic piece of the Brentwood fabric, first
housing Brentwood Books in 1960 and subsequently the much loved Dutton's
Brentwood Books, which has been in the building since 1983. The courtyard
provides a well-used community gathering place, where book signings and author’s



readings occur daily. Just a few of the well known authors that have signed their
books there are Al Gore, Ralph Nader, Carolyn See, Maria Shriver, Alan Shephard,
Amy Tan, Gore Vidal, Kurt Vonnegut, Alice Walker, and Tom Wolfe. Butitis the
local community that uses the building as an intimate neighborhood resource.
School fundraisers, community gatherings, noonday lunch-timers, book and café
guests, all enjoy using the lush courtyard and surrounding businesses. Many of the
businesses, incduding David Barry Jr., Margorie Braude and Ray Keller, have
maintained their offices there for well over 30 years. The suites of the original
barbershop and dentist office are still used as such. The building has been called
both wonderfully funky and a sacred space. But no matter how each person
experiences it, it has become a genuine landmark along San Vicente Boulevard in
Brentwood, California.



APPENDIX

The Barry Building



Appendix : The Barry Building
Contents:

(1) Photographic portrait of Milton H. Caughey
(2) California State Architectural License (1942).

(3) AIA Award for Excellence in Design and Execution, Riverside Juvenile Hall
(1957).

(4) Citizen-News (Wed. May 29, 1957) First place award for watercolors at Westwood
Art Assoc. exhibit and Los Angeles Times (1958) “Architect heads WW Art Group.”

(5) Los Angeles Times (July 16, 1958) “Architect Milton H. Caughey Dies.”

6) Biography of Milton H. Caughey

(7) List of Architectural Projects |

8) The Garred House, Hollywood Hills, CA. 1949 Photo: Julius Shulman.

(9 & 10) McCall Head, E “Adobe in the modern manner.” The Garred House, Source Unknown.
(11) The Garred House, Hollywood Hills, CA. 1949. Photo: Julius Shulman.

(12) McCall Head, E. “Boards and batten blends with glass and brick.” The Goss House,
Brentwood heights, CA. 1950. Source unknown.

(13 & 14) “A plain rectangle is given a hospitable look,” article by Ruth Corell, The Caughey
House, Brentwood CA. 1951. Unknown Source.

(15-17) The Caughey House, Brentwood, CA. 1951 Exterior and interior views.

(18 -20) Los Angeles Examiner (June 26, 1955) “Easy upkeep down by the sea,” by Charles
Bowen, (Cover & pg 10-11) The Hillburg House, Capistrano, CA. 1952.

(21) The Barry Building in 1951, photo: Robert C. Cleveland
(22) Archtectural Forum. (Oct, 1954). “Young architects: Ten outstanding buildings by
some of the nations most promising young designers.”(pg. 148) “School
shielded from the sun.”
(23 & 24) Pachappa School, Riverside, CA. 1953 (AIA Award) Photo: Julius Shulman.
(25) Victoria Elementary School, Riverside CA. 1953 ( AIA Award) Photo: Julius Shulman.

(26 & 27) Pacific Architect and Builder. (Nov. 1958). “Back-to-back classrooms enlarged by
courts.” (pg. 18-19). Victoria School, Riverside, 1953. ( AIA Award)

28) Los Angeles Times. (March 25 1956). “Three Riverside schools’ dedication conducted.”



(29 -31) Monroe Elementary School, Riverside, CA. 1955, (AIA Award) Photo: Marvin Rand.
(32) Bryant Elementary School, Riverside, CA. 1950’s Photo: Robert C. Cleveland.

(33 & 34) Highland School, Riverside, CA. 1957. Photo: Marvin Rand.

(35) “Board Names Senior High Architects” Ramona High School, Riverside. Unknown source.
(36 & 37) “Plans for A New High School” by Bruce Miller, Ramona High, Riverside, CA 1956-7.

(38) Los Angeles Times. (Apr. 19, 1959). “Steel units featured at Riverside school.”
Rubidoux High School, Riverside, CA. 1957-8.

(39) Los Angeles Times. (Feb 9, 2007). “ Much more than steel and wood,” by Diane Caughey.
(40-42) List of well known authors that had book signings at Dutton’s Brentwood Books.

(43) Santa Monica Mirror, (Feb. 15, 2007). “Save Our Bookstore.”



(1) Milton H. Caughey



@ _

ZHFGY L& NV QLINVYED “Z2oz- YIGIWAN FLVIIALLYAD A<ZO~w~>OMm — YHIWNN

6SP-D

AYVLIYOHES . LINFAISTUd

:TYES ANY SONVH YN0 LIS TA JOTTTH A SSINLIAA NI

"HENAIDALTHDYY 40 ID1LDVHd THL H1VIN
‘DHY OL 1DV HH.L NI QHAIAOYd SY VINYOA ks i nnkl
ATYD 40 ALVLS THL NI IDILIHDOYY ATLLL ME 450 OL QZ,Q;

HIOLDILTHDYY HDILDVYd OL LHOIY THL QNHZ¢MU AgT9HH
ST ‘SSHNLIA STH 40 IDNHAIAH WMOHUﬂHmH.Ha«w ZM>HU D.ZH\VdQH_. |

XTHHNYD INIITIZYH NOLTIN

‘IVHL SLNASTNI SSTHELL X9 NI TIV AAONN

mQ,m<QZ<.Hm H<ZOHH<UO> D.;Z< H<ZOHmmmmOMm 0 HZmsz<me

»




€)

ggeme

D1 uu

IAISYIALY

I N3 dIS33Yd

LTd3w [G61

O*__UU C.._Or_“_30w

“TIVH 3I7TINIANT
110y

ATIHONVYD 'H NOLITIW

NOILND3iX3i ANV

*}2931Yyd24D 0}

NDOIS3Id NI 3ID2N3IT77T32X1

4 Od



¥)




Architect Milton H. Caughey Dies

Los Angeles Times (1886-Current "2); Jul 16, 1958; ProQuest Historical Newspapers Los " geles Times (1881 - 1985)

pg. 26

Architect
Milton H.

Caughey Dies

Milton H. Caughey, archi.
tect, died suddenly in his
home at 11773 Chenault St
Brentwood, early yesterday.
He was 46. R

A native of Warren, Pa.,
and a graduate of Amherst
College and the Yile Grad-
uate School, Mr,. Canghey
began his architectural ‘ca-
reer in Los Angeles in 1945
after service as a Navy liey-
tenant in World War 11,

Mr. Caughey was the win-
ner of four Southern Cali-
fornia -honor awards from
the Awmerican Institute of
Arxchitects. He was president
of the Westwood- Art -Asso-

ciation, president .of . the

West Area Co-ordinating
Council of Los Angeles, a
member of the architectural
board of the Episcopal Dio-
cese of I.os Angeles and
fleet captain of the South
Coast Corinthian Yacht
Club.

Mr. Caughey leaves his
widow, Mrs. Janet Disque
Caughey; two daughters,
Linda and Diane; his par-
ents, Mr. and Mrs. Francis
Caughey of Warren, Pa.; and

a sister, Mrs. Jane Spicer of

Rhode Island. Funeral ar-
rangements are pending,

- Woodbury Fete Set

Woodbury College will ob-
serve jts 75th anniversary
Friday at a Founders Day

open house starting at 9 a.m.

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.
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CAUGHEY, Milton Hazeltine, architect, was born
in Bellevue, Pa., Dec. 20, 1911, son of Francis Mor-
row and Grace (Hazeltine) Caughey. Milton H.
Caughey received his preparatory education at the
Kiskiminetas Springs School, Saltzburg, Pa., and was
graduated A.B. in 1934 at Amherst College; and
B.F.A. in 1938 at Yale University, where he alsb did
graduate work in architecture. Meanwhile, he was a
draftsman for E. A. & E. S. Phillips, architects of
Meadville, Pa., in 1935 and for McKim, Meade &
White, architects of New York City, in.the summer
of 1936. He did architectural worK in 1938-39 for
George Howe and later for William Lascaze, both

- architects of New York City, in connection with

buildings for the New York World's Fair of 1939-40.
He was a draftsman for Anthony Lord, Asheville,
N.C., in 1939-40, for Albert Kastner, Albany, Ga.,
in the latter year, and for Marsh, Smith & Powell,

. Los Angeles, Calif., during 1940-42. After doing

architectural work on a U.S, Navy building at San
Pedro, Calif., in 1942-43, he was commissioned a
lieutenant in the U.S. Naval Reserve, in which ca-
pacity he served during the Second World War as
an instructor in damage coatrol at Cornell Univer-

sity. For a few moaths in 1946 he worked as a -

draftsman for Gordon Kaufmann, Los Angeles. From
the latter year until 1953 he conducted an independ-
ent architectural practice in Los Angeles, and dur-
ing 1953-57 he was a member of the architectural
firm of Caughey & Ternstrom in that city. There-

after until the close of his life he practiced as Milton -

Caughey & Associates. He chiefly designed schools,
playgrounds, detention homes, and private resi-
dences. His principal projects were the Barrington
Playground in Brentwood, Calif. (1950), Riverside

. County (Calif.) Juvenile Hall (1955), and a num-

ber of schools in Riverside, Calif., including the

. Pachappa School (1953), Mountain View School
- (1954), Monroe School (1955), Victoria School
(1955), and Highland School (1957). He also served

as associate architect on the design of Ramona High
School in Riverside (1957), and at the time of his
death he was working on plans for Rubidoux High
School in that community. Caughey served as a vis-
iting critic and lecturer at the University of Southern
California School of Architecture in' 1953-54 and
again during 1955-57. He was the recipient of four
honor awards from the Southern California chapter
of the American Institute of Architects for buildings
designed by him: two in 1954 for the Pachappa
School and for the Hillburg residence at Capistrano
Beach, Calif., and the other two in 1957 for the Mon-
roe School and the Riverside County Juvenile Hall.
Additionally, Caughey served. in 1948 as president
ot the West Los Angeles-Coordinating Council for
Youth, and from 1955 until his death he was a
member of the architectural planning committee of
the Episcopal Diocese of Los Angeles. He was a
member of the American Institute of Architects,
Delta Kappa Epsilon, and the Kiwanis Club of West-

wood Village, Calif. His religious affiliation was )

with All Saints Episcopal Church, Beverly Hills,

Calif, and he was a Republican in politics. His
pastimes included the study of history and archaeol-
ogy, hunting, fishing, and sailing, and in connection
with the last-named he served as fleet captain of the
Soutl: Coast Corinthian Yacht Club at one time. An
accomplished painter in the medium of water color,
Caughey received an award for the best water color
in the 1957 art exhibit of the Westwood Art Asso-
ciation, which he served as preésident in the follow-
ing year. He was-married in Beverly Hills, galif.,
Oct. 30, 1937, to. Janet, daughter of Kenneth Hulbert

Disque of Erie, Pa., an engineer, and had two daugh-

ters, Linda and Diane. Milton H. Caughey died in

Los Angeles, Calif., July 15, 1958.

()



Milton H. Caugheiri Architectural Projects
Incomplete list

Residential Projects
Garred House, Hollywood Hills, Los Angeles, 1949
Goss House, Brentwood Heights, Los Angeles, 1950

Spicer House, Weekapaug, Rhode Island, 1950
Caughey House, Chenault St, Brentwood, Los Angeles, 1951

El Medio House, Pacific Palisades, 1950-52 (later bought and remodeled by
Eric Owen Moss as the 708 House)

Hillburg House, Capistrano Beach, CA 1952 (AIA award)
Mudd House, Trancas Beach, Malibu, 1952-'54

Institutional and Commercial Projects

Barry Building, San Vicente Blvd. (AKA The Dutton’s building), Brentwood, 1951
Barrington Playground, Brentwood, Los Angeles, 1950

Pachappa Elementary School, Riverside, CA 1953 ( AIA award)

Addition to Lowell School, Riverside, CA Early 1950’s

Barry Building (adjacent bldgs) Brentwood, CA 1953 (not apart of historic monument)

Mountain View Elementary School, Riverside 1954

Monroe Elementary School, Riverside, CA 1955 (AIA award)
Victoria Elementary School, Riverside, CA 1955

Riverside Juvenile Hall, Riverside CA 1955 (AIA award)
Bryant Elementary School, Riverside, CA Mid-1950"s
Walgrove Elementary School, Venice, CA Mid-1950s

Hemet High School Gym, Hemet, CA Mid-1950's

El Sereno Playground, Los Angeles, CA Date unknown
Caughey/Maston Offices, 920 La Cienega Blvd, Beverly Hills, with Maston, 1956
Ramona High School, Riverside, CA, associate architect 1956-7
Highland Elementary School, Riverside, CA 1957

Rubidoux High School, Riverside, CA 1957-8

(1)



Above: Window wall of concrete and brick-floored living
area overlooks the valley. Below: From. the terrace one
looks into living area, down hall past entrance to study.

The Garreds’ long, low house has character of a California ranch house but is Modern
in treatment. Adobe brick is grayed-grape color, fir of bedroom wing is tobacco brown.

HIS long, low house set

on a plateau offering mag-
iificent views of city, moun-
ains and valley has a charac-
er reminiscent of the Early
California ranch house. Built
f adobe brick and Douglas

of the living area to become
one with terrace paving,
breezeway to bedroom wing
and west terrace. This creates
a flow of interior and exterior
space.

From the entry door, one

Julius Shulman photos

may turn to the left down a
short hall which leads to dark-
room and study-guest room
and bath, This seclusion of the
study which doubles as guest
room from the rest of the
(Consinued on Page Twelve)

ir it has a crisp Contempo-
-ary treatment and borrows

ugh the home is
safiflobe brick and wood

vith roofed porches, its han-

lling is definitely Modern.

Set on a plateau above the
'oad with magnificent vistas
n all directions, the house
wgs its site and the landscap-
ng by Eckbo, Royston & Wil-
iams makes the building one
vith the natural beauty of its
ocation.

The drive from the street
elow ends in a spacious mo-
or court providing plenty of
»arking for guest cars. The
-arport is shielded from the
‘ront by a bold adobe brick
vall with planting pocket.

The guest steps from the
:ar to a long covered and
ricked porch leading to the
:ntry, or the members of the
‘amily may step from the
iutomobile in the carport, un-
ler cover, and go through an
pening to the same passage-
vay.

Exterior adobe brick is
ainted a grayed grape tone
vith posts and fascia of a
natching color. The bedroom
ving of vertical grain Doug-
as fir is stained a natural to-
vacco brown and offers inter-
isting textural contrast to the
nasonry. The architect has
1sed the same color for the
ame material inside and out-
ide the house.

This same prineiple is ap-
lied to the flooring material.
“he covered entrance passage
s bricked and the bricks enter
he house to form an entry
1all, continue across the end

At right angles to the glass-walled living-dining area
is a bedroom wing, built of vertical grain Douglas fir.

t H“210 M. BEDR,|
L:l‘é‘-:tG o b ?;DR' 16x12

Row of transom windows
runs above wood storage
wall beyond dining area.

7 h

(9) Garred House 1949



Julivs Shulmon

Plastic panel above table

‘just inside entrance door

conceals the kitchen area.

Sliding screen separates
kitchen and den; window
opens to barbecue area.

On this side it opens on the sun terrace; on the opposite side onto a barbecue terrace.

Below: The barbecue terrace facing the front entrance. right rear, will not
be alfected by additions of the hiture; entrance terrace is radiantly heated.

(10) Garred House 1'949' L
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'(11) Garred House 1949




b ST

ARD and batten con-

struction used to be syn-
onymous with ranch house de-
sign. But here is a house built
largely of redwood board and
batten cambined with glass
and brick in the Modern man- -
ner.

Privacy from the street,
outdoor living on a well
wooded site and easy house-
keeping have been provided in
an area of 1670 square feet.
Milton Caughey, AIA, planned
this house for Mr. and Mrs.
Frank Goss and their baby
daughter with emphasis on
their informal way of living.

A spacious motor court off
the street eliminates a lot of
front yard garden mainte-
nance. The board and batten
redwood garage and kitchen
wing are set off by a chimney
of generous proportions, A
continuing brick wall extends
across the front of the house
with only transom windows
under a wide roof overhang.
Ultimate privacy from the
street is thus achieved in this
house which opens with walls
of glass to both back and side
terraces.

A glance at the floor plan
will show the brick of the en-
try porch continuing into the
house, across the end of the.
living area, the adjoining
kitchen and counter and flow-
ing out to the rear terrace.
Such a bricked area makes

b Juliun Shalman photon very practical ﬂoormg for
From the bedroom wing one looks across the living area to the handsome, copper-faced fireplace set in brick wall which main circulation and is partic-

4 continues around the corner to form a partial partition concealing entrance door; kitchen can be glimpsed across the hall. (Contivned i Page Ten)

(12) Goss House 1950




SPECIF Y a simple rectangle and you can have
the least costly of all home plans. Specify a simple
rectangle and you can also hand your designer his
greatest challenge. No plan is more demanding of
true inventive thinking, and no house can look

‘more ordinary when such thinking is not applied.

The designer of this house met the problem
head on and produced what we think is a home
with exceptional appeal.

The living area dominates the plan. It is spa-
ciously light and has a furniture arrangement that
suggests an atmosphere of quiet enjoyment — of
leisurely family conversation. (Perhaps the ab-
sence of a TV screen contributes to this quality.
It is there, but well concealed behind the paneling
beside the fireplace.)

Though a house for essentially sociable people,
it provides the privacy each of us wants and needs

. a place for solitude and relaxation. If you love
children but still cherish a life of your own, it’s

e e e

- The plam rectangle

1§ given

a comfort to know that a sliding door can separate
the active and quiet halves of the house.

The kitchen is a large, warm and friendly room.
It is cut off from view from the living room but its
furniture-type cupboards continue on around to
encircle the dining area.

The only breaks in the basic rectangular outline
of the plan are made by the two bathrooms and
the utility room. Their angle gives the front en-
trance an added degree of protection from the
street. The door is further set apart by a planter
and an airy divider marking the roof extension.

To further camouflage the regularity of the plan,
the garage and fences wing out at slight angles
from the house, sheltering the terraces and playing
up the unsymmetrical shape of the lot.

Though modest in scale, by aiming at durable
styling, the architect has linked good design to
serene simplicity, a practical arrangement of space
and all the facilities essential to gracious living.

(13) Caughey House 1951



BY RUTH CORELL

MILTON CAUGHEY A.

ARCHITECT:

__,E_'_li_!_L.____

.

The back terrace off the dining room and kitchen is favored by the family
for outdoor meals. It is paved in cement squares, partially protected by the
wide eaves and sheltered from neighbors by rustic wood fence and plants
The plan tells the story. It is a neat rectangle with the exception of the
bathrooms and heater room. The living and dining-kitchen areas span the
width of plan. Bedrooms are all conveniently arranged on the short hallway

The living room is planned for active or quiet hours. There are books with
lights to read them by. Beside the fireplace are TV and sound systems.
But furniture is grouped socially if conversation is more to family tastes

An overscale glass door may be pushed aside in good weather to merge
indoor and outdoor living rooms. This view of the front terrace and main
entrance shows how planter and grid divider insure privacy for relaxation

Behind the chair at the right is a slender black line marking the sliding door
that can completely separate the kitchen-dining area from the living room.
Another sliding door shuts off the hallway leading to the three bedrooms

(14) Caughey House 1951
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SCHOOL SHIELDED FROM THE SUN

Points worthy of note in the trim, low-cost building ($11.50 per sq.

. _.CAUGHEY & TERNSTROM, both under 40, ) ~ ft; total, $292,680): ¥ exterior metal louvers on both north and

hive been partners two years. TERNSTROM

graduated from the University of Southern south glazing in classrooms to stave off sky glare as well as sun;

California in 1940, also spent more than three » both side walls of classrooms 100% glazed, horizontally stiffened
years in the navy. CAUGHEY graduated with exposed X-rod bracing; ¥ frame and stucco construction through.
- from Yale Architectural School in 1938, went . out; b classroom partitions of plywood plastered on one side against

West to work on the coast and serve three sound transmission, left naked as own finish on other side (and

ears in the navy. L e . . : 1 1s .
year Y serving also as the only shear bracing in the building—there is no

PACHAPPA SCHOOL, Riverside; Calif. s dl;igonal"sheathmg).
M. H. CAUGHEY & C. C. TERNSTROM, architects, . *, ., - Bright ‘colored and cheery, this 12-classroom school accepts the
HEERS BROTHERS, general contractors . bright sun and California’s kids with unostentatious, but real, archi-

WILLIAM PORUSH, structural engineer

) ¢ ‘ tectural charm.
HILBURG, HENGSTLER & TURPIN, mechanical, electrical envgi’neers;

(22) Pachappa School 1953 (AIA Award)
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Back-to-back classrooms enlarged by courts

Marvin Rand photos

Victoria Elementary School
Riverside, California

CAUGHEY & TERNSTROM
Architects

WILLIAM PORUSH
Structural Engineer

HILBURG & TURPIN

Mechanical-Electrical Engineers

T. C. PRICHARD & SON

General Contractors

(26) Victoria School 1955




THIS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, whose present
‘4 enrollment is 360, appears to be quite unpreten-
- . tious .but it._has. an .unusually workable plan. of . . ...
4 back-to-back classrooms enlarged by courts. The
gently sloping site, rather small in view of future
expansion, requires the use of ramps and two
separate levels. Buildings are fitted tightly on the
.upper side to provide maximum playground space,
with an odd shaped corner reserved for kinder-
garteners.

The back-to-back classroom solution offers 1)
better site utilization; 2) economies in construction;
and 3) pleasant, really usable courts designed for
interclass activity or open air eating and spacious
enough to minimize distractions. A central utility
core facilitates removal of walls when desired;
movable cabinets and chalkboards aid teaching
flexibility. Sink and storage counters in the courts
expedite outdoor instruction, eliminating the need
for an installation at each classroom. Fluorescent
fixtures supplement daylight and cross ventilation
is afforded by a continuous roof umit.

The open, no-glazed side of the multipurpose
room creates additional space and the same per-
sonnel can supervise both hot and sack lunchers.
The area is large enough to accommodate such
events as the PTA carnival. Radiant heat allows
all-year round use; fenestration and fencing con-
trol the wind. Glare and reflection in all courts
are reduced by lawn, brick and colored concrete
areas as well as overhead louvers and roofs.

OUTLINE SPECIFICATIONS

Structure: foundation: reinforced concrete; frame: open-
web steel beams; floors: concrete slab.

Exterior Finish: stucco—California Stucco Co.; brick—
(Grout-Loc) Davidson Brick Co.
Roof Surfacing: composition and gravel—Pioneer Division-
Flintkote.
windows: steel sash—(Truscon) Republic Steel Corp.
Doors: steel—(Kalamein) Overly Manufacturing Co.
Floor Surfacing: asphalt tile in classrooms—(Matico) Mastic
Tile Corporation of America; vinyl tile in kitchen—
(Vinylflex) Hachmeister, Inc.
Partitions: stud and plaster.
Interior Finish: plywood finished shear panels; ceramic
. ing, McBean &:.Co. .

dér Divistoni-Flintkote. -
rescent; others—Wagner-Woodruff

Heating: gas fired wall heaters—Payne Furnace Co.; elec-
tric heaters for smaller rooms—Thermador Electrical
Mfg. Co.; gas fired boilers in multipurpose and kinder-
garten—Bryan Electrical Manufacturing Co.; radiant
in administration—Trane Co.; radiant controls—Minne-
. apolis-Honeywell Regulator Co.; exhaust fans—Ilg
Electric Ventilating Co.
Plumbing and Sanitary: toilets and lavatories—Crane Co.;
drinking fountains—Haws Drinking Faucet Co. ) .

Special Equipment: aluminum louvers—Aetna Steel Pro- OVERHE{\D lOUYERS put fffadow on otherwise hot ?r?und plant, easing
ducts Corp.; porcelain enamel letters—California Metal eye strain, creating livability. Center walkway eliminates passing by
Enameling Co.; linoleum countertops—Armstrong Cork classroom window wall, acts as glare control; crossover walkways reduce
Co.; laminated plastic tabletops—Formica Co.; folding circulati Ramps t two levels of gently sloping site.

B tables—Son-Nel Products, Inc.; rolling counter doors— .

0 Cookson Co.; sinks and drainboards—job-built stainless

steel; dishwashing machine—Hobart Manufacturing

Co.; garbage disposer—Waste King Corp.; lockers—

Worley & Co.; corkboard—Armstrong Cork Co.; chalk-

board—(Fibraslate) Son-Nel Products, Inc.

‘ Total Area: 24,425 sq. ft.

Total Cost: $339,483 (entire contract).
Cost per Square Foot: $13.47.

Date of Completion: November 1956.

Pacific Architect and Builder—November 1958 19

(27) Victoria School 1955
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Aerial view of the . classroom buildings for the new high school at
Riverside, California. The school has three project architectural firms.

These "buildings were designed by Caughey & Ternstrom.

AERIAL VIEW - CLASSROOM BUILDINGS

RIVERSIDE, CALIFORNIA, PLANS A NEW HIGH SCHOOL

VOTING school bonds or boosting tax limita-
tions to finance new schools or additions is a long, low-
gear pull, but if the superintendent and his staff can

still smj}g,gfger the last vote is. counted, the shift into
- high-should be made with dispatch. Once havir
cided "in favor of ‘schaol
for action. They want

-away;

Tig

and if the dirt isn’t ﬂying"’wi;thin’a few weeks, they

threaten to “look into the matter.” ,
If things have been moving along as they should
be, teacher-administrative planning committees have

e K

settled their differences and have come to an agreement

about improvements for the old plant. Costs have been
figured and re-figured with desperate courage.

Most important, the architect or architectural staff
‘will be ready to go; better, they will have been on the
job for some time. When money is finally available,
there should be no long wait for site utilization plan-
ning* before preliminary drawings can be authorized,
leading to the actual working drawings.

241

ing:

“have:."gr_o'Wﬁr* S—1TOIf*
10,500 to 15,800—and where there is no letup in

e x wa ot A o < H -
SCi1001. 1€ VOI€ was Ccountea O 4 1uesaay mnignt ana

hy BRUCE MILLER

Superintendent of Schools, Riverside, California

Superintendent Miller began his career as the principal of a small
elementary school in the Imperial Valigy.- Later he became the
principal at Ramona and Placentia; and was appointed the super-
intendent of schools at Ontario, California, in 1940. He has been
with the Riverside City Schools since 1951.

Happy is the superintendent who can crawl out
from beneath a bundle of blueprints long enough to
wave cheerfully at contemporaries and to prove to
more caustic critics that the big job is moving “accord-

»

€.

scheds

e, California, where
oré than' 50 percent in four

q

sight, timing is a vital factor. In late April, 1954, the
High School District voted $3,000,000 in bonds for

construction of a longneeded second senior high

Abhanl Tha ntn oI Maxacd ik d

on Wednesday morning four architects, already ap-
pointed, already in full agreement as to their respective
assignments and already well advanced in site planning,
really went to work.

While “division” of a major school job is not un-
usual, several factors are noteworthy with regard to the

Riverside plan of procedure. First of all, there was no-

question in the minds of trustees concerning the quality

(36) Ramona High Schooi 1956




RIVERSIDE, CALIFORNIA, PLANS A NEW HIGH SCHOOL

The administration building has been designed
by Herman O. Ruhnau, architect. The areas in-
cluded are an attendance office, guidance office,
deans’ and principal's offices, a general area,
rest rooms and a faculty lounge,

superintendent who worked with the architects. This
approach has the disadvantage of being a little slower
in preliminary phases than other methods, but the
advantages outweighed a mild early lag and brought
to bear the combined talents and study of many.

The Projects Are Assigned

Architect Herman O. Ruhnau of Riverside was as-
signed the design of gymnasium, shower and locker
buildings, shops and administration building, and the
coordination of all specifications and contract docu-
ments as well as responsibility for supervision of con-
struction of the entire project. In this task he has
available as consultants the other project architects in
connection with the buildings they have designed in-

di\"/’idUa]l_y.f These -architects ¢
of Bivcrsidé;: ih'chargéf‘off’sité, levelopment, auditc
and cafeteria, and the firm of Caughey and Ternstrom
of Los Angeles. The latter are in chaige of all academic
classrooms and special rooms.

The entire project will be bid in one lump sum
contract in order to take advantage of size and to ob-
tain the lowest unit cost. The contractor, however, un-
der the agreement, will be responsible to only one
architect. ' '

Psychological factors have favored the arrangement
from the beginning. The school board has respected the
abilities of all architects involved and the architects, in
turn, have had confidence in each other. Thus there
has developed a true pooling of experience and facili-
ties.

Careful cost controls have been effected. First,

there were frequent meetings with trustees and written
confirmations of all decisions. During preliminary plan-
ning, all matters requiring board decision were brought
up for discussion as they arose, so that when the pre-
liminaries were completed they reflected the board’s
wishes. Complete preliminary plans were approved be-
fore the architects proceeded with working drawings,

~and a detailed estimate was made based upon the pre-

liminary plans. Another estimate will be made upon
completion of the working drawings.

Capacity of the School
The high school will house 1,500 students at the
outset and will be expanded to a capacity of 2,000 or
more later. All of the unexpandable facilities were

grouped in ‘th‘e. first -phase. Thg’e_se_: mcluded the audi- -

The plans for the central court and covered passages
are the work of the firm of Caughey and Ternstrom.

(37) Ramona High School
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L.OS ANGELES TIMES

Much more than
steel and wood

By Diane Caughey

LENTY OF PEOPLE Will tell you that Dutton’s Brent-
wood Books is more than a simple bookshop. It's a

“landmark, they’ll say, a literary oasis, a secular
church. But it also represents the perfect union of a
building and a Business. -

Milton H. Caughey, my father, was the architect who de-
signed that building on San Vicente Boulevard, the one that
may be demolished in the near future to make way for a retail-
office-condo development. He had a master’s degree in archi-
tecture from Yale, moved to Los Angeles in 1940 and started
his practice after returning from the war. He won a number of
awards for the homes and schools he designed, but his bud-
ding career was cut short. In 1958, when he was 46, my father
died of a heart attack; and the name Milton H. Caughey is lit-
tlé known today. .

My family lived in Brentwood — in a house designed by
my father — and as a child, I would walk to the simple, two-
story courtyard building that Dutton’s now occupies. Built in
1950, it’s a classic example of midcentury California contem-
porary architecture. It’s solar shades foreshadowed today’s
green design. The simple facade floats above the sidewalk,
held up by small steel columns, typical of the modern move-
ment. The openness created below invites you in off the street
to enjoy the intimate heart of the building, the courtyard.

Here, offices with walls of windows surround a space of
sunlight, fresh air and nature — a rarity in today’s office build-
ings.The courtyard is a meeting space of interior and exterior,
public and private, the perfect gathering spot. My mother,
Janet Caughey, now 94, still visits Dutton’s weekly.

But authentic landmarks are not built; they grow over

_time. The first bookstore, Brentwood Book Shop, moved into
the building in 1960, and Dutton’s bought that busine
1984. Over 22 years, Dutton’s expanded into nearly all the
other ground-floor spaces filling them with overflowing book-
shelves.

The courtyard became an extension of the store, where
authors signed their books and children. listened to stories

q in
W L1

FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 9, 2007 A25

. ROBT C. CLEVELAND
PEBFECT MATCH: The i)uilding that has
housed Dutton’s Brentwood Books for 22
years is uniquely suited to the task.

while their parents sipped coffee from the cafe in the corner.

Like a good marriage, building and bookstore have

brought out the best in each other. The wonderful experience

+of browsing Dutton’s shelves is bodily linked to the character
of the physical space. The emotional descriptions of the store
as “funky” or “sacred” reflect our deep longing for spaces
where the world can feel intimate again. History, memory and
love have been absorbed into the very steel and wood of the
walls. That’s what brings a building to life.

Unfortunately, most of our new mega-buildings, built for
maximum space and profit, are dead. Their souls have crept

-out through the door, seeped out through the cracks. Is this
the fate of this property on San Vicente Boulevard? As a city,
are we destined to lose yet another genuine landmark? I hope
not. I'm working with the Los Angeles Conservancy and his-
toric preservationists in the city’s Planning Department to
nominate the building as a historic cultural monument.

If that fails; Charles T. Munger, who owns the building
and a large swath of land around it, has said that any new de-
velopment would inelude a ground-floor space for Dutton’s or
another independent bookstore. But without that buﬂdmg,
my mind, Dutton’s would always be a widow.

DiaNE CAUGHEY is an architect and Jungian psychothera-
pist in West Los Angeles.

(29)



List of authors

who've had book signings or readings at Dutton's Brentwood in the Barry Building.

Isabel Allende
Martin  Amis
Kate Atkinson
Margaret Atwood
Don Bachardy
Russell Banks
Nick Bantock
Lynda Barry
Graeme Base
Charles Baxter
T.C. Boyle

Kate Braverman
Berkeley Breathed (5/07)
Octavia Butler
Meg Cabot
George Carlin
Rosalyn Carter
Raymond Carver
Michael Chabon
Eoin Colfer
Jackie Collins

Pat Conroy
Robert Crais
Michael Cunningham
Jamie Lee Curtis
Leo & Diane Dillon
Roddy Doyle
Bob Edwards
James Ellroy
Amy Ephron
Louise Erdrich
Percival Everett
Jasper Fforde
Janet Fitch

Anne Taylor Fleming
Jonathan Safran Foer
Dick Francis
Jonathan  Franzen
Carlos Fuentes
Cornelia Funke
Al Gore

Jane Hamilton
Carl Hiaasen
Oscar Hijuelos

Alice Hoffman
AM. Holmes
Nick Hornby

Khaled Hosseini (6/07)

{4\



Thomas Hoving
Robert Hughes
Eric Idle

Pico Iyer

P.D. James
Diane Johnson
Roger Kahn
John Kerry (4/07)
Ross King
Barbara Kingsolver
Nicole Krauss
Jhumpa Labhiri
Chang-Rae Lee
Ursula Leguin
Annie Leibovitz
Diane Leslie
Jonathan Lethem
Mario Vargas Llosa
David Lodge
Alison Lurie
David Mamet
Steve Martin
Frank McCourt
Malachy McCourt
Ian McEwan
Larry McMurtry
Anchee Min
Ralph Nader
Howard Norman
Tim O'Brien
Amos Oz
Chuck Palahnick
Robert Parker
Richard Price
Reynolds Price
John Rechy
Ann Rice
Salman Rushdie
Carolyn See
Lisa See
Vikram  Seth
Sidney Sheldon
Alan Shephard
Carol Shields
Maria Shriver
Jane Smiley
Lemony Snickett
Sonya Sones
Susan Straight
Amy Tan

Scott Turow
Gore Vidal
William Vollman
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Kurt Vonnegut
Alice Walker
David Foster Wallace
Sarah Waters
Marianne Wiggins
Robert Wilson

Tom Wolfe
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Sources

Books:

Banham, R. (1971). Los Angeles: Architecture of four ecologies. New York:
Harper and Row Publishers.

Boesiger, W. (Ed.). (1972). Le Corbusier. New York: Praeger Publishers.

Gebhard, D & Winter, R. (1965). A guide to architecture in southern California.
Los Angeles, CA: Los Angeles County Museum of Art.

Hatje, G. (Ed). (1964). Encyclopedia of modern architecture. New York:
Harry Abrams Inc. Publisher

Jencks, C. (1973). Modern movements in architecture. New York: Doubleday Anchor.
McCoy, E. (1975). Five California architects. New York: Praeger Publishers.
Pischel, G. (1978). A world history of art. (2" Ed). New York: Newsweek Inc.

Rosa, J. (1999). A constructed view: The architectural photography of Julius Shulman.
New York: Rozzoli.

Steele,]. & Jenkins, D. (1998). Pierre Koenig. London: Phaidon Press Limited.

Articles

-Archtectural Forum. (Oct, 1954). “Young architects: Ten outstanding buildings by
some of the nations most promising young designers.”(pg. 148) “School
shielded from the sun.”

Los Angeles Times. (March 25 1956). “Three Riverside schools’ dedication conducted.”

Pacific Architect and Builder. (Nov. 1958). “Back-to-back classrooms enlarged by
courts.” (pg. 18-19).

Los Angeles Times. (Apr. 19, 1959). “Steel units featured at Riverside school.”

Indepth Art News. “PSFS: Nothing more modern.” 8/30/2003 — 11/5/2003
Yale School of Architecture Galleries, New Haven. Internet.

Brentwood Historical Society. “Oral History of David Barry Jr.” (Dec. 30, 1997).
Interviewed by Elizabeth Eisenbach and Laura Blumenthal.



Sources

Interviews
Interview with Clint Ternstrom of the firm Caughey and Ternstrom. (Jan.30, 2007).

Interview with Joanne Wehmueller, office manager for Milton Caughey for 8 years.
(Feb. 3, 2007). :

Interview with Ray Kappe, Architect. Shared office building and occasionally
drafted for Milton Caughey. (Feb 4, 2007).

Interview with Julius Shulman, Architectural photographer of Milton Caughey’s
work. (Feb. 20, 2007).
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CURRENT PHOTOGRAPHS OF
THE BARRY BUILDING
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PROPERTY ADDRESSES

11975 W SAN VICENTE BLVD
11973 W SAN VICENTE BLVD

ZIP CODES
90049

RECENT ACTIVITY
None

CASE NUMBERS

CPC-29649
CPC-28385
CPC-25504
CPC-24818-HD
CPC-24817
CPC-1994-308-DRS
CPC-1993-359-DRB
ORD-173381
ORD-157559-SA14A
ORD-146541
ED-74-2641.03-143-ZC
PRIOR-07/29/1962

PLANNING
JEZabAN

City of Los Angeles

- - Department of City Planning
04/13/2007
PARCEL PROFILE REPORT
Address/Legal Information
PIN Number: 129B145 87
Area (Calculated): 16,592.8 (sq ft)
Thomas Brothers Grid: PAGE 631 - GRID G4
Assessor Parcel Number: 4404025008
Tract: WESTGATE ACRES
Map Reference: M B 7-90/91
Block: None
Lot: 51
Arb (Lot Cut Reference): 1
Map Sheet: 129B141
129B145

Jurisdictional Information
Community Plan Area:
Area Planning Commission:
Neighborhood Council:
Council District:

Census Tract #:

LADBS District Office:

Planning and Zoning Information
Special Notes:

Zoning:

Zoning Information (ZI):

General Plan Land Use:
Plan Footnote - Site Req.:
Additional Plan Footnotes:
Specific Plan Area:

Historic Preservation Review:
Historic Preservation Overlay Zone:
Other Historic Designations:

Mills Act Contract:

POD - Pedestrian Oriented Districts:
CDO - Community Design Overlay:
Streetscape:

Sign District:

Adaptive Reuse Incentive Area:
35% Density Bonus:

CRA - Community Redevelopment Agency:

Central City Parking:
Downtown Parking:
Building Line:

500 Ft School Zone:

[ aTa N = W o P

500 Ft Park Zone:

Assessor Information
Assessor Parcel Number:
Parcel Area (Approximate):
Use Code:

Building Class:

Assessed Land Val.:
Assessed Improvement Val.:
Year Built:

Last Owner Change:

Brentwood - Pacific Palisades
West Los Angeles

None

CD 11 - Bill Rosendahl
2640.00

West Los Angeles

None

C4-1VL

Z1-1802 Hillside Grading
Ordinance Exemption Area
Neighborhood Office Commercial
See Plan Footnotes
Brentwood

San Vicente Scenic Corridor
West Los Angeles Transportation
Improvement and Mitigation
No

None

None

None

None

None

No

No

None

Eligible

None

4404025008

26,7894 (sq ft)

1200 - Store and Office
Combination

D65B

$955,206

$62,568

1951

1951

12/14/06



~~Last Sale”Amount:”

Number of Units:

Number of Bedrooms:

Number of Bathrooms: e
Building Square Footage:

Tax Rate Area:

Deed Reference No.:

Additional Information

Airport Hazard:

Coastal Zone:

Farmland:

Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone:
Fire District No. 1:

Fire District No. 2:

Flood Zone:

Hazardous Waste / Border Zone Properties:

Methane Hazard Site:
High Wind Velocity Areas:
Hillside Grading:

Oil Wells:

Alquist-Priolo Fault Zone:
Distance to Nearest Fault:
Landslide:

Liquefaction:

Economic Development Areas
Business Improvement District:
Federal Empowerment Zone:
Renewal Community:
Revitalization Zone:

State Enterprise Zone:

Targeted Neighborhood Initiative:

Public Safet
Police Information:
Bureau:
Division / Station:
Report District;
Fire Information:
District / Fire Station:
Batallion:
Division:
Red Flag Restricted Parking:

s -
32
0

2
13,301.0 (sq ft)
67

None

None

None

Area not Mapped
No

No

Yes

None

Within Fault Zone
No
No

None
None
No

None
None
None

West
West Los Angeles
826

19
9

1
No



CASE SUMMARIES

Note: Information for Case Summaries is Retrieved from the Planning Department's Plan Case Tracking System (PCTS) Database.

Case Number: CPC-24818-HD
Required Action(s): HD-HEIGHT DISTRICT
Project Description(s): Data Not Available

Case Number: CPC-1994-308-DRS
Required Action(s): Data Not Available
Project Description(s): DESIGN REVIEW BOARD REQUEST TO INSTALL A NEW SIGN.

Case Number: CPC-1993-359-DRB
Required Action(s): DRB-DESIGN REVIEW BOARD
Project Description(s): ADD RECIVING - STORAGE AREA TO DUTTON'S BOOKS

Case Number: ED-74-2641.03-143-ZC
Required Action(s): ZC-ZONE CHANGE
Project Description(s): Data Not Available

Case Number: PRIOR-07/29/1962
Required Action(s): ZC-ZONE CHANGE
Project Description(s): Data Not Available

DATA NOT AVAILABLE

CPC-29649
CPC-28385
CPC-25504
CPC-24817
ORD-173381
ORD-157559-SA14A
ORD-146541



